Sunil Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of 1908 E-Ventures Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanving standalone Ind AS financial statements of 1908 E-
Ventures Private Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “standalone Ind AS
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the acconnting principles generally accepted in India, of the state

of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows

for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SAs”) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include
the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our anditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
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is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or atherwise appears to he materially misstated If hased on the work

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directars is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial
position), loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgmenis and estimaies ihat are reasonabie and prudent; and design, impiementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the ricks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
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from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements
made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncerlainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure A”, statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive

income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the hooks of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B.”

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ifi.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
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believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31
March 2025.

vi.  The Company has migrated to Tally Prime from Tally ERP 9 and is in the process of
establishing necessary controls and documentations regarding audit trail (Refer note
no. 36 in the financial statements). Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit
trail feature of the said software.

For Sunil Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration N¢.: 142806W

Sunil Modi

Partner

Membership No - 042562
UDIN: 25042562BM1.YZB5378
Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th April, 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

IReferred fo in paragraph perfaining to “Report an Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement” of our report of even date to the members of 1908 E-Ventures Private
Limited, on the ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025]

(i} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible Assets;

(b} The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment so to cover all the assets once every year which, in our opinion, is
reasanahle having regard to the size of the Company and. the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘Property,
Plant & Equipment’). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company as.at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) {(a) There is no physical inventory as at 31 March 2025. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, at any point of time of the year, the company
has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets;

(iii) The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs)
or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 18% of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3{iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
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In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections
185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{a) According, to thie niformation and explanations given v us and records of die
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state
insurance fund, income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax,
sales tax, value added tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and any other
statutory dues as at 31st March 2025 which have not been deposited on account of
dispute.

(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations

(ix)

given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Incone Tax Act, 1961.

(a)The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any
financial institution or a bank or government or any dues to debenture-holders
during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
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any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventiires or associate companies.

() (a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and. did not have any term loans outgtanding during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or party convertible
debentures during the year under review.

() (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or no fratd on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADI4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Goverrunent;

() To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the company.

(i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xdii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the
standalone Tnd. AS financial statements as required by the applicable accaimting
standards. Further, in our opinion, the Company is not required to constitute Audit
Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

{xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,

{b) the Company is not required to appoint an internal auditor in compliance with section
138 of the Act and applicable rules. Accordingly, the provisions of clanse 3(xiv)(b) is not
applicable.

{xv} In our opinion ad accordiig to the bdormation and explanations giver: to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him.

(xvi) The Company is not engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution (NBFI)
and is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (i) of .the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the
previous financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
this clause is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liahilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

{xx) According to the infermation and cxplanations given to us, provisions of Section 135 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the company;

(xxi) The Company has not made investments in the subsidiary company. Therefore, the
company does not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Accordingly,
provisions of clanse 3(xxi)(a) of the Order are not applicahle to the company:

For Sunil Modi & Co

. 142806W

Membership No.: 042562
UDIN: 25042562BMLYZB5378
Place: Mumbai

Date: 16t April, 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to in paragraph pertaining to “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement” of our Report of even date to the members of 1908 E-Ventures Private
Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

In conjunction with our audif of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of 1908 E-
Ventures Private Limited (“the Company”) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (“IFCoFR"} of the
Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Confrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note ont Audit of Interiial Finencial Controls over Financial Reporting (“ihe Guidance Note)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness. of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of IFCoFR. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such vontrols operated effectively in all materiai respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or erTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permii preparation of ind AS Financiai Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected . Also, prajections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to furture periods
are subject to the risk that [IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Sunil Modi & Co
Chartered Accountan
FRN No: 142806W

W7, ©
/_-Sunil Modi
Partner
Membership No. 042562
UDIN: 25042562BMLYZB5378
Place: Mumbeai
Date: 160 April, 202

—



1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
[Curreney: Induan Rupees(Rs"000)]

Particulars MNotes As at 3st March 2025 As at 3lst March 2024
I [ASSETS
(1) |Non-current assets
() Pre perty, Plant and |".|_|lrii\l|1('nl 3 L 179,69
(1) Intanaable agsets 3 (000 12,635.75
(€) Right-of-use asscr 4 (LA 10
() Deferred tax Assets (Net) 3 LN (L0
() Non-current financial asscts
(1) Invistments [ (L00)
(1) Other Ainancial assers 000 [
() Other non-current tax assets 4 0ot 4415
[£24] Other non-current assets {00y [RRNIN]
0.00 12,859.59]
(2) [Current assets
(a) Inventones [T (00
(b) Finanecial Asscts
(1) Trade recervables 7 0.00 16.20
() Cash and cash equvalents # 6.76 47148
(1) Other current financial assets 9 (.00 25.02]
(c) Oher current asscts 10 0.00) 1906297
6.76 19,576.07)
Total Assets 6.76 32,435.66
IT [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Eguity Share capital 1t 60,196.39 60,196.39
(b) Other Eguty 12 -6, 26870 -35.026.41
-72.31 25,169.98
LIABILITIES
(1) | Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Lease habihities 040 10
(1) Long-term borrowings 13 .00 (L0
(b) Long-term provisions (L 0,00
0.00 0.00
(2) |Current liabilities
(a) Financil Liabilines
(1) Lease habalites (.00 (L
(1) Short-term borrowings (0 [N
(1} Other trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 45.81 21218
Total ul.lfST:ll\dil]g dues to creditors other than micro 14
and small enterprises 826 6,767.57
(1v) Other current fAnancil habilites 15 25.00) 285.93
(b) Short-term provisions (100 0.00
79.07 7,265.68
Total Equity and Liabilities 6.76 32,435.66
The accompanying notes are mtegral part of the financial
statements (all amounts in Rupees Thousands)
In terms of our report on even date attached
For Sunil Modi & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

% i & 3 -
Firm Registration Ne

/ y &
Sunm Deep A. Lalvani Jatin B. Pokarne

Partner (Charrman Dircerde
Membership No, 042562 DIN: 01771000 DIN: 11205735
"/C)) e ‘15&\-\1561 “L‘fZBSNS Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Place : Mumbai Date @ 16th April, 2025 Date : 16th April, 2025

Date: 16th Apnl, 2025




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
For the period ended 31st March, 2025

[Currency: Indian Rupees(Rs."000)|

Particulars Notes 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from operations 16 (.00 15,762.04
Orther meome 17 4,845.89 14,523.52
Total income 4,845.89 30,285.56
Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 18 0.00 -217.29
Changes i1 inventories 19 0.00 28,060.95
Employee benefirs expense 20 0.00 6,197.00
Finance costs 21 8.43 1,594.98
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 3,436.25 2,370.54
Other expenses 23 406.47 11,407.00
Total expenses 3,851.15 49,413.18
Profit before exceptional items and tax 994.74 -19,127.62
Exceptional items -26,237.03 38,286.83
Profit before tax -25,242.29 19,159.21
Tax expense

(1) Current tax 0.00 0.00

(2) Deferred rax asset/ (Lability) 0.00 -7A416.13
Profit for the year -25,242.29 11,743.08
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefir liabiliry 0.00 0.00

Income tax relating to items not reclassified 0.00 0.00
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 0.00 0.00

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year -25,242.29 11,743.08
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings (loss) per share (4.19) 3.18
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (+.19) 3.18
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
(all amounts in rupees)
In terms of our report on even date attached

For Sunil Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 142806\

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

d Deep A. Lalvani
Chairman

DIN: 01771000

Place : Mumbai

Date : 16th April, 2025

Sunil Modi
Partner
Membership No. 042562 )
Udin 250U 2562BMLYZB35 378
Place : NMumbai

Date : 16th April, 2025

Jatin D.
Director
DIN: 10205733
Place : Mumbat
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1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

|Currency: Indian Rupees(Rs'000)]

Particulars

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment provision
Inrerest meome
Lxchange (Gain)/Loss
Provision for Input eredit loss
Provision for Leave encashment
Gain on account of lease cancellation
(Profit) /loss on sale of PPLL
Sundry balances written back/written-off

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for:
Deerease/ (Inerease) in inventories
Decrease/ (Inercase) in trade receivable
Decrease/ (Increase) in long rerm loans and advances and other recervables
Deerease/ (Increase) n other assets and receivables
(Decrease)/Inerease in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Income rax refund /(paid)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets and capital work in progress
Purchase/(Sale) of investments
Proceeds from sale of PPL
Interest income on fixed deposits and other advances
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from loans & advances
Proceeds from issuance of Lquity shares

Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Also, refer note 12)
Cash in hand

Balance with scheduled banks in current accounts

Total

2524329 19.159:21
343625 2370054
037612 0,000

-(0.38 -11.04
130.11 348.91
165,285.92 .00
0.00 0.00
0.00 -31.81
0.00 223.07

-4 845,51 -14,100.59

1,140.20 8,158.29
0.00 28.060.94
16.20 2.646.05
25.02 537.84
821.20 5.853.07

247121 -32,292.37

-468.59 12,963.82

0.00 0.00
-468.59 12,963.82
0.00 (.00
0.00 40.00
3.09 225,52
.38 11.04
3.47 276.56
0.00 -15311.61
0.00 2.499.93
0.00 -12,811.68
-465.12 428.71
471.88 43.17
6.76 471.88
.00 143.67
6.76 328.21
6.76 471.88

This is the Cash flow statement referred to in our audit report of even date

For Sunil Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants

lirm I{cg_;i::lrn%ﬁ“

n
4 ’

Sunil Modi

Partner
Membership No, 042562

Chatrrman

DN 01771000
Place @ Mumbai
Place : Mumbai

Date 1 16th April, 2025

Deep A. Lalvani

Dare : 16th Aprl, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[Dircetol
IDIN: I(
Place : Mumbai

Date : 1oth April, 2025

. Pokarne

005733



1908 E-ventures Private Limited

Cash losses Calculation

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Profit & Loss ( excluding other comprehensive income) 2,52,42,294) 1,17,43,082
Add: Depreciation and amortisation 34,36,248 23,70,535
Add: Impairment loss 93,76,115 -
Less: Sundry balances written back -
Add: provision for GST input credit loss 1,82,85,919
Add: Gratuity
Add: Rent paid = -
Add: Loss on settlement of financial assets - -
Add: ESOP expense - -
Add: Foreign exchange gain/loss 1,30,113 548,910
Less: Deferred Tax - (74,16,129)
Net cash loss 59,86,101 72,46,398




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 31st March, 2025

|Curreney: Indian Rupees(Rs'000) |

A. Equity share capital

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Amount in
Number of Shares

Number of Shares

Amount in

Rupees Rupees
Opening Balance 6,019.64 60,196.39 5,994.51 59.945.14
Add: Shares issued on exerase of employee
stock opions durnng the vear 0.00 (.00 (.00 0.00
Add: Shares 1ssued on prvate placement 0.00 0.00 25.13 251.25
Balance as at the end of the year 6,019.64 60,196.39 6,019.64 60,196.39

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulars . . Securities Employee share Total equity
Retained earnings . :
premium options (net)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1 April 2024 -2,14,467.15 1,79,440.74 0.00 -35,026.41
Profit for the vear -25,242 720 .00 0.00 -25,242.29
Issue of equity shares 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer from/ro general reserve/ retaned

carnings during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Employee stock options (net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other comprehensive ncome (.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year -25,242.29 0.00 0.00 -25,242.29
Balance as at 31st March 2025 -2,39,709.45 1,79,440.74 0.00 -60,268.70

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Rersined camiigs Sccurﬁtics Emp.lo_vcc share Total equity
premium options (net)
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1 April 2023 -2,26,210.23 1,77,192.06 0.00 -49,018.17
Profit for the year 11,743.08 0.00 .00 11,743.08
Issue of equity shares 0.00 2,248.68 0.00 2.248.68
Transfer from/to general reserve/ retained

carnings during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Limployee stock options (net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,743.08 2,248.68 0.00 13,991.77
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -2,14,467.15 1,79,440.74 0.00 -35,026.41

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements (all amounts in Rupees Thousands)

In terms of our report on even date attached

For Sunil Modi & Co
Charrered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 14280068

Sunil Modi

Partner

Membership No. (42562

u&m:‘zsouzscz(sm?%‘

Place : Mumbm
Date : 16th Apnl, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Deep A. Lalvani

Chairman

DIN: 0177 1000
PMace : Mumbai
Dare : 16th April, 2025

Jatun D\Pokarne
Director
DIN: 10205733
Place : Mumbai
Date : 16th Apnl, 2025




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited

Material

accounting policies and other explanatory information for the half year ended 31st March, 2025

Notes to the financial statements

I Company information

()

1908 F-Ventares Pyr, L, is o privare limired company  incorporated under the provision of the Companies Aet, 2003, The Company was
promoted & meorporated by M/s. LB, Advani & Company Pve Lid. and M/s0 Ador Muloproducts Ted. on 18t Sugust 2015 o carry on the
av and sell multiple brands

business to create an e-commerce platform - both website based & mobile application based that will showease, disy
and provide all ¢ - commerce based trading of consumer goods,

1908 E-Nentures Pvt, Lid. Cthe Company’) s a pavate limated eompany and was incorporated in 2005, The registered and corporate office of the
company 15 saruated ar 5th Qoor, Ador House, 6K Dubash Marg, Fort, 6, K Dubash Marg, kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumba, Maharasheea 00001,

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)
0]

fis)

)

@)

)

(it}

)

()

Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

The fi 1ty as “Ind AS") presenbed under section 133 of

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standaeds) Rules 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

ancial statements have been prepared i accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (refe

The finangial statements have been prepared on g histoncal cost convention and acerual basis, except for the certam financial assets and liabilives that are
mensured at fair value and defined benefit plan assets measured ar fair values by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of asser or paid on transfer of hability in an orderdy transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price 1s directly abservable or estimated vsing another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asser or a hability, the Company takes into aceount the charactenistics of the asset or liability if marker participants would take those chareteristics into
account when pricing the asset on iability at the measurement date,

All assets and habilines have been clas
businesses, as per the ertena set out i the Schedule 1 o the Act

fied as current or non-current based on the Company’s normal aperating cycle for each of its

These financial statements were authonsed and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 April 2025,

Critical estimates and judge

For all periods upto and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with. Generally
Aceepted  Accounting Principles in India (IGAAP) and complied with the accounting standards (Previous GAAP) as nonfied under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, (as amended), to the extent

applicable and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 (as amended) of the Act (collectively, “Ind AS™) with effect from 1 April, 2017,

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS which requires management to make estimates, assumptions and exercise
judgement 1n applying the accounting policies that affeer the reported amount of assets, labilines and diselosure of contingent liabilities ar the
dare of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The Management believes that these esnmates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the management's best knowledge of current
events and actons. Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences berween actual results and estimates are recognised in the
periads in which the results are known or materialised.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexiry, and of items which are more likely to be
ssed.

materially adjusted due to esumates and assumptions wening out to be different than those originally ass

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Fquipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company . The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation 1s derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expeered residual value at the end of its life. The
useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at the tme the asset 15 acquired and reviewed

periodically, including at each financial year end.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. Significant judgement is involved in
arrving at the deferred tax assers and liabilities, which 15 based on the Company’s current operations and projections for the future.

Defined benefit obligation

The cost of post-employment benefits is derermined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuagion involves making assumptions about
discount rates, espected rate of return on assets, future salary mereases and mortality rates. Due to the long term natre of these plans such
estimates are subject to sigmficant uncertainty,

Basis of measurement

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basts using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of
accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilides which have been measured ar fair value as deseribed below and defined benefir plans

which have been measured ar actuarial valuation as required by relevant Ind AS.




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the half year ended 31st March, 2025

Notes o

(d)

the financial statements

rvalue measurement

The Company measures certin lnancial assets and labalities at fair value at each balanee sheet dare, Far value is the price that would be reecived

to sell an asser or pad o transfer a linabiliy inoan orderly rransaction between macket pacticipants ar the measurement date. The far value

measurement 1s based on the presumpnon thar the rransaction to sell the asser or teanster the lability mkes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or hablity, or
- In the absence of a poncipal macker, in the most advantageous markert for the asser or hability

The principal or the most advantageous market muse be aceessible by the Company .

The Lur value of an asser or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asser or lability,

tin their economic best interest,

assuming that market participants

A fair value measurement of @ non-financial asset takes into account a marker participant’s ability 1o generate cconomic benelfits by using the

asset m ats lughest and best use or by selling o o another marker participant that would use the asset s highest and best use.

w transacions
m Ind AS 2 or

Fair value for measurement and for disclosure purpose in these financial statements is determined on such a basts, except for le:

that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to faie value, such as ner realisable value

value in use in Ind AS 36

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the eircumstances and for which sufficient data are available 1o measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable mputs and mmimismg the use of unobservable inpurs,

All assers and habilites for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
desenibed as follows, based on the Towest level inpur that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for wdentical assets or habilines

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sig ant to the Far value measurement s directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuaton techngues for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has deternuned elasses of assets and labilines on the basis of the natre, characteristics
and nisks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above.

Functional and presentation currency

These Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared i Indian Rupee which is the Company’s functional currency.

2.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)
@

(1)

(1)

(1v)

)

(i)

Income Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is measured at the faur value of the consideration recenved or receivable, net of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes and other
mdireer taxes exeluding exeise duty.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold are transferred o the customer
which generally comeides with delivery.

Revenue from Services

In contract involving rendering of serviees, revenue 1s recognised using the proportionate completion method in line with agreements /
arrangements with concerned parties and is ner of goods and service tax. Revenue from services is recognised when the services are rendered in
accordance with the specific terms of contract and when collectability of the resuliing receivable is reasonably assured.

Revenue from Contracts

Revenue from fised price contracts is recogmised using the percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is determined as a
proportion of the cost incureed up o the reporting date of the total estmated contract costs. Proportionate completion is measured based upon
the efforts incurred to date in relation o the toral estimated efforts w complete the contract. The Company monitors estimates of total contract
revenue and costs on a regular basis throughout the delivery period. The cumulative impact of any change m estimates of the contract value or
cost is reflected in the period in which the changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is
made for the estimated loss.

Interest income
Interest income 15 accounted on accrual basts in time proportion. Interest ncome is recognised using effectve rte of mterest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established.

Lease Cost / Expenses

The initial divect costs incurred in negotiation and arcanging an operating lease are added o the carrying amount of the leased assers and  recognized over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. The rent free perod, incentives or discounts during the imitial periods of the lease teem be reeognized as
an waregral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased assets. The common wtility eharges such as Property Taxes, Warer & Electneity
Charges, Secunty & other mantenances changes collected in terms of contractual nbligations ave netted against the respective unlity charges/ xpenses.




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the half year ended 31st March, 2025

Notes to the financial statements

(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i} Property, plant and equipment

(ii

(i)

()

lrechold land s careied at listorieal cost. Al other items of Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
s and non-refundable

imparment, 1 any. The mitial cost of property, plant and cquipment comprises its purchase price, including import du

purchase taxes, attributable borrowing cost and any other divectly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working conditon and location for
mtended use. Ir also includes the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning and removing of an asser and restoring the sie
alter s use, i the eecognitinn eriteria for a provision are met.

The Company provides depreciation on all assers on written down value basis over us useful Life of asset which is i line with Schedule 11 of
Companies Act, 2013,

xpenditure ineurred after the property. plant and equipment have been pur into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally
charged to the sttements of profit and loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure 15
capitalized 1f the recogmtion eriterm are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required o be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful hves. Likewise, when a major inspection is performud, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as
a replacement if the recognition eriteria are satisfied. All nther repair and maintenance costs are recogmised in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized netwithin other income /other expenses in statement of profit and loss.

COnomic

tially recognised 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no fur
r on derceogmition of the asser {caleulated as the difference berween the net

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part 1
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss a
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser) 15 included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset s derecognised.

The residual values, useful hives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed ar each financial vear end and
adjusted prospeetvely, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the pomt when an asset 15 eapable of operating in the
manner intended by management, the cost of construction s transferred o the appropriate eategory of property, plant and equipment. Costs
assocuted with the commissioning of an asset are eapitalised wll the tme asser 15 available for use for operating at normal levels. Revenue
generated from production during the trial period is eredued to capital work in progress.

Investment properties:

Property that 15 held for fong-term rental yields or for capital appreemtion or both, and that is not in vse by the Company, s classified
stment property. Investment property

investment property. Land held for a currently underermined future use is also classified as an inv
measured minally at its acquisition cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Depreciation

Depreciation s provided on a pro-rara basis on the Written down value (WIDV) method based on useful life as estumated by the Management
and aligned to Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actoal usage of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired under
finance lease 1s spread over the lease period or useful life, whichever 1s shorter.

Assets m the course of development or construction and freehold land are not depreciated.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation
commences when the assets are ready for ther ntended use.

Deprecianon is caleulated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset less s residual value, Depreciation is provided at rates
caleulated to wrte off the cost, less estimated residual value, of éach asset on a written down value basis over its expected vseful hfe determmed
by the management and aligned to the schedule 11 o the Companics Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of assets.

Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the cconomic benefit derived from such costs. The carrying
amount of the remaming previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the
previously estimated life of the economic benefit.

When significant spare parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciaton methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and changes in estimates, 1f any, are accounted for
prospectively.




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited
Material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the half vear ended 31st March, 2025

Notes to the financial statements

(©)

(d

—

o)
(i)

Intangible assets
Intangible assers acquired are measured on smtal recognition ar cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assers are carried at cost less any
accumulited amortisanon and accumulared h-np;ﬁrms;nr losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed ag cither fimte or indefinite, The Company currently does not have any intangible asscts with

an indieation

metit whenever there is

ets are amortised over the vseful cconomic hife and ass

mndefinite usetul hife. Tntangible as sed for impa
that the intangible asset may be imparred. The amortusation period and the amortsation method Tor an intangible asser are reviewed ar least ar
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the espected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future ceonomic benefits
embaodied m the asser are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treared as changes m accounting
cstimates. The amortisation expense on intangble assers is recognised m the statement ol profic and loss unless such expenditure forms part of

carrving value of another asset,

Gns or losses ansing from dereengmiion of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the ner disposal proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset and are recognised 1 the starement ol profit and loss when the asset 15 derecognised.

The Company amortses intangible assers wath a fimire useful hife vsng the straght-line method over the following periods: Compurter
Software/Website Development - 3 to 5 years.

imated vseful lives. The amorusanon period and the amortisaton method

Intangnble assets are amortised on a Steaght Line basis over their e
wed at least ar cach fimanaal year end. 1F the expeeted useful life of the asser is significantly different from previous estimates, the

are e
amortisanon period 15 changed accordingly.

Brand acquired have been amortsed over the esumated useful lives of 7 years.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asser of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Luitiad vevugnition and measirenent

All financial assets are recognised mtially ar fair value plus, i the case of (nancial assets not recorded at fair value through statement of profit
and loss, transaction costs that are attributable o the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assers within a ume frame established by regulation or convention in the marker place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
L

t.e., the date thar the Company commits o purchase or sell the as

Sulrsequent sreasrement

Subsequént measurement of financial assets is described below -

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debr instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the followmng conditions are met:

The asset s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fows, and

Contractual terms of the asser give rise on specified dates to cash flows thar are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP) on the principal
amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effecuve mterest rate (IIR) method.
Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pact of the FIR.
The EIR amorntisation is included in finance income in the statement of profic and loss. The losses amsing from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, This category generally applics 1o teade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt nstrument” 1s classified as at the FNTOCH if both of the following critera are met:

The objective of the business model 15 achieved both by collecnng contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

The asset’s contractual eash flows represent SPPL

Debt mstruments included within the 'VTOCI category are measured minally as well as at each reportng date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes inferest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI 15 reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned while holding FVTOCI debr instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL 15 a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt insirument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at amortized cost
or as P'VTOCI, 1s classified as ar FVITPL.

In additon, the Company may clect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT eriteria, as at FVTPL.
Flowever, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency  (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The Company has designated 1ts investments in debt instruments as FVTPL. Debt insteuments included within the F'VIPL eategory
are measured ar fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profic and loss.




1908 E-Ventures Private Limited

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the half vear ended 315

March, 2025

Notes o the financial statements

(u)

(1

(1

Financial Assets - Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, @ part of @ financial asset or part of a Company of similar Anancial assers) is primarily dereeognised (e
removed from the Company's balance sheer) when:

15 L'HHE! I]i!\\'?\' ’.l'i nii []1C Assel J'I.{\'l.‘ L'KI\I['L'R{_ or

The r:g!':ts iy rec

set or has agsumed an obligation o pay the recerved eash Qows e full

The Company has transferred irs rights o receive cash flows from the as
without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
asset, but has

and rewards of the asser, or (1) the Company hias neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
transterred control of the asset.

vement, 1t evaluares f

When the Company has transforred its rights to receive cash fows from an asser or has entered into a pass-through arra

and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retaned substantially all of the risks
et to the extent of the

and to what extent it has retuned the
and rewards of the asset, nor rransferred control of the asser, the Company continues to recognise the ransferred as
an associated habilitv. The ransferred asser and the assocated

Company’s contmung involvernent. In that case, the Company also recognis
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the

form of a guarantee over the ransferred asset 1s measured ar the lower of the ongmnal careyving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

constderation that the Company could be sequired 1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credir loss (I2C1) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e, loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables or any
that are withmn the scope of Ind AS 18,

contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from ransacuons

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on teade recevables. The application of simplificd
approach docs not reg

at each reporting date, right from it inital recogninon.

: the Company to track changes in credit nsk. Rather, 1t recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime FCLs

For recopniion of impairment loss on other financial assets and nsk exposure, the Company determunes that whether there has been a
215 used to provide for

sigmificant increase in the credit visk since imnal recognition. 1 eredit ask has not increased significantly, 12-month I
mnpairment loss. However, if credit risk has ncreased significantly, hfetime BCL is used. If, in a4 subsequent period, credit guality of the
mstrument improves such that there is no longer a significant merease in credit nisk sinee inital recogmtion, the Company reverts o recognising
impatrment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected eredit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-
month ECL is a porton of the lifetime ECL which resules from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL 15 the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due o the Company in accordance with the eontract and all the eash flows that
the entity expects to receive (Le., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

FCL imparment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period 1s recogmzed as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.
This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses’ n the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
nstruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost BCL s presented as an allowance, 1.e., as anintegral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheer. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Unil the asset meets write-off eriteria, the Company does not reduce
imparrment allowanee from the gross carrying amount.

Dbt instruments measured at 'VTPL: Simee finanaal assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowanee is not further reduced from
its value. The change in fair value 1s taken to the statement of Profitand L

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already refleeted at fair value, imparment allowance is not further reduced
from 1ts value, Rather, ECL amount is presented as "accumulated imparrment amount' in the OCL '

The Company does not have any purchased or originated eredit-impaired (POCH) financial assets, i.c., financial assets which are credit impaired
on purchase/ origination.
Financial liabilities - Recognition and measurement

Fmancial liabilines are classified, at nnal recognition, as financial liabilines at fair value through statement of profit and loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilite
TrANSACHon cosks.

s are recognised mtially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payvables, net of direetly attributable

The Company’s finaneial labilities include trade and other pavables, loans and borrowings including bank overdeafts, financial guaranice
contracts and dervative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial habilines depends on their elassification, as deseribed belows:
Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss

Financial habilies at faie value through statement of profit and loss include financial labilines held for trading and finaneial liabihites designated
upon initial recopnition as at fair value through statement of profit and loss, Financial habilines are elassificd as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near erm, This eategory also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
that are not designated as hedging insteuments i hedge relanonships as defined by Ind AS 109 Separated embedded dervanves are

Compa

also classificd as held for trading unless they are designared as effective hedging instruments.
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(2)

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

lue through statement of profit and loss are designated as such ar the ininal date
ENVIPL, fare value guns, loss

Financial liahilines designated upon mtial ceeognmon at fair

< attnbutable 1o

of recognition, and only i the enters in Ind AS 109 are sansfied. For labilities designared a :
changes inown credit risk are regognized m OCL These gams/ losses are not subsequently transferred o statement of profit and loss. However,
the Company may ransfer the comulanve gan or loss within equiny. Al other changes in fair value of such labiliey are recognised m the

statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any finaneial lability as at fair value through strement of profit and los

Loans and Borrowings

\fter initial recognition, mierest-beanmyg loans and borrowings are subsequently measured ar amornsed cost using the effecnve interest rate
(herewalter referred as FIR) method. Gams and losses are recognised in statement of profitand loss when the labilities are derecogmised as well

as through the FIR amortisation process.

Amornsed cost is caleulated by taking o account any discount or premium on acg 0 and fees or costs that are anintegral patt of the EIR.

The EIR amortisanon 1s included as finance costs in the statement of profic and loss.

Financial liabilities - Derecognition
A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exisung financial

s, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substannally diffecent tern
modified, such an exchange or modification 15 treated as the derecogniton of the onginal liability and the recognition of a new lability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilines are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, o realise the assets and settle the habilities simultancously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheer comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subjeet to an ingignilicant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atributable wo the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, ar each reporting date, whether there is an indicaton that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset 1s required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value i use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
mdividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets.
ot a5 considered impaired and is written down 1o its

When the carrving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the ass

recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less e sts of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken mnto account. If no such transactions can be dentified, an appropriate valuaton model 15 used. These ealeulations are
correborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment caleulation on detatled budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared separately for cach of the
Company’s CGUs to which the mdividual assers are allocated.

Imparrment losses of continuing operatons, including impairment on inventorics, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

An ass made at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer
15t or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company esumates the asser’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised

SR
CX

imparment loss 15 reversed only 1if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recogmised. The reversal is hmited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 1ts recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of deprecianon, had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the staement of profit and loss.
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(h) Government grants

ssurance thar the grant will be received and all attached conditions wall be
over the perods that the relaed costs,

Government grants are recognised where there i reasonable

rermatic by

complicd with. When the geant relates w an expenseatem, 1t s recognsed as income on a

i 1s preated as deferred income and released o the

for which it is intended o compensate, are expensed. When the grant rel
statement of profic and loss over the expected vseful lves of the assets coneerned. When the Company eecetves grants of non-monetary ass
1zed o statement of profic and loss over the expected useful life in a pattern lll

the asset and the grant are recorded at fur value amounts and rele

tnce are provided by governments or related institutions, with

(‘.Uﬂ.iiil'r‘l]'\ti‘ n of the benefit of the lu‘ldL'rl)'ing asget. When loans or simlar ass
an mterest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or
sistanee i nmally recognised and measured ar fair value and the government grant 1s measured as the difference between the intal earrying
sl halulines.

value of the loan and the proceeds recetved. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounnng poliey applicable w i

(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except serap and by products which are valued at net realisable value.

os

mcurred n bringing the mventory w its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

(a) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs ncurred m bringing the mventories to their present location and condition. Cost is

(b

derermined on first in frst out (F1FOY) basis.

Finished gonds and work in progress: cost includes cost of direer matenials and labour and a- proportion of manufacturing overheads based on

the normal operanng capactty, but excluding boreowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Ner realisable value is the esumated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary Lo make the sale.

Obsolete invenrories are identified and writen down o net realisable value. Slow moving and defective inventories are wentified and provided

to net realisable value,

(j) Taxation

Current income tax
Current mncome tax ts and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pad to the taxaton authonies. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, ar the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other eomprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjeet to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reportng date. Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all faxable temporary differences except
when it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses,
Dieferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable thar raxable profit will be available aganst which the deduetible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused rax credus and unused ax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profic will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed an each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assers and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the year when the asser is realised or the liability 15
settled, based on rax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {cither in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offser 1f a legally enforceable right exists o set off current tax assets agamnst current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authoraty.

Mimimum Alternate Tax (MAT) pad in accordance wath the rax laws, which gives future ecconomic benefits in the form of adjustment o forure
income tax lability, is considered as an asser if there is convineing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax, Accordingly, MAT 15
recogmised as an asset in the Balance Sheer when it is probable that future economie benefir assoctated with it will fow to the Company.

k) Emplovee benefit schemes
Pploy

(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of recerving emplovee services are cls
s and wages, performance incentives and compensated absenees winch are expected-to oceur in nest twelve months, The
‘cophis an espense as the celaed

fied as short-term employee benehits. These

benetits inelude salan

undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchaggedor employee services is Te

service 1s rendered by employees.
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U

Compensated absences:

Compensated absences accruing o employees and which ean be carned o future perdods but where there are restrictions on availment ne
encashment or where the avmlment or encashment 15 not expected 0 occur wholly in the next twelve months, the ability on account of the
benefit s determmed actuarially vsing the projected unit eredit method. 'Re-measurement gains and  losses arising from expurience

adjustments and changes i actarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, direetly to statement of profit and loss.

(b) Post-emplovment benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

Conmibutions to defined contmbunon schemes such as contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Employvees™ Stre Insurance
Corporanon and Labours Weltare Fund are charged as an expense to the Statement of Profir and Loss based on the amount of contribution
reguired o be made as and when services are rendered by the emplovees. The above benefits are elassified as Defined Contribution Schemes as
the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which 1s a defined contribution plan.

(ii) Defined benefit plans (up to 31.03.2023)
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefir plan (the “Gratity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have
completed fve years or more of service at retirement, disability or wrminaton of employment, being an amount based on the respective
employec’s st deawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estmated futare cash outflows by reference to marker vields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the wrms of the related obligation. The net interest
cost iz caleulated by applyving the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets if any. This
cost s included m employee benefit expense in the statement of praficand loss.

The Tability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respeet of geatuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fuir value of plan assets if any. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by acruaries using the projected
unit credit method.

Re-measurement gans and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised ' the period
m which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclssified o profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the
defined benefir obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profir and loss as past
service cost.

Provident Fund

Eiligible employees of the Company receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan, Both the eligible employee and
the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a speeified percentage of the covered employee's salary.
Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees. The Company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Provision for liabilities and charges, Contingent liabilities and contingent asscts

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingeneies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.
Provisions represent habihties w the Company for which the amount or timing 1s uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and 1t is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be relably estimated,
will be required to settle such an obligation. If the effect of the tme value of money 15 material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and

loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it 15 either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount eannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial starements when an nflow of ceonomic benefits is probable.
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(m) Foreign currency transactions

(n)

(o

—

(P)

In the fnancial statements of the Company | transactions i eurencics other than the functional currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rates ruling ar the dare of the tensacnon. Monetary assets and labilines denommated m other eurrencics are translired
e the funetional currency ar exchange rates prevailing on the reporting dare. Non-monetary assets and  liabilities denominared in other

s and measured ar historical cost or fur value are teanslated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on whieh such values were
determimed.

The results and financial posion of foreign operations (none of which has the corrency of a hyperinilationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation curreney as follows:
() Assets and liabilites are transhated at the closing rate on the balance sheet date

(b) Income and EXpLnses are translated ot the av crage L-xt:]'l:m;_-,t‘ rate {inless this 15 nor a reasonable APPrONITEATION of the cumulative elfeet of the

are transhited at the date of transacton

rates prevailing on the stion dates, m which case income and ExXpenses

() All resultmg exchange differences are reengnised in other comprehensive income

When a foraign operation s sold, the assocuted exchange differences are reclassified 0 staement of profit and loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale,

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
ar the closing rate.

Earmings per share
The Company presents basie and diluted carnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basie FPS is ealeulated by dividing the profit and
loss attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted

LIPS as determined by adjusting the profit and loss atereibutable o cquity sharcholders and the weighred average number of equity s

outstanding for the effecs of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the chiel operating decision-maker (CODA.
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

Segments are organised based on business which have similar ceonomic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities 1 nature of products and
services offered, the nature of producton processes, the type and elass of customer and distribution methods,

“Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include revenue and expenses thar relate to ininatives/costs atribuable o the enterprise as a whole and are
not attributable to segments,

Leases
The Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consise of leases for Land and Buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contams, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asser for a
period of ome in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(1) the contract involves the use of an idenrified asset

(1) the Company has substanually all of the ceconomie benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(ir) the Company has the right to direet the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recogmises a right-ofuse asset ("ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For
these short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a steaightline basis over
the term of the lease,

The right-ofuse assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any minal direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulared depreciarion and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability s initially measured ar the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease lability is subsequently remeasured by
mereasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease Tiability, reducing the carrying amount to refleet the lease payments made. A lease
liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine

lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

The Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its
useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recogmised in the statement of profit and loss on o straight-line basis over the

term of the lease, unless the payments to the lessor are structured 1o increase in bine with expected general inflation to compensate for the

mflatoniry eost ncreases.
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(q) Share-based payment arrangements

(r)

The stock opnons granted 1o employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, ace measured ar the fair value of the options at the
¢ compensaton cost over the vesnng period on a

grant date. The fare value of the options s treated as discount and accounted as emple
el on the pumber of grants expected w vest. 1Fa grant lapaes

strajght hne basis. The amount recognised as expense incach year is arrived an b
after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant s transferred 1o the gencral reserve/ retuned

carnings within cguity.

Exceptional items:
\n ordinary item of income or expense which by its size, nature, oceurrence or incidence requires a disclosure m order to mmprove understanding

of the performanee of the Company is treated as an exceptional item in the Statement of Profic and Loss account.

I'has space has been left intentionally blank
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[Curdency: Indan Rupees(Ra"000)]

3. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

block - at cost

Depreciation/ Amortsation Net block Net block
As at As at For the As at As at As at
Particulars Additions Impairment* Deductions 31 March 2025 1 Apnil 2 year Impairment* Deductions 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Laomputers 0,64 458 0, RN - 3.45.230 (381472 6,585 - 1,24,258
Furmre and fixoures = ]
lecrneal mstallanons = . N
Office eyupments 28 400 (ZAEA400 - 242008 215310 264478 = 55.432
Total 9,67,5888 - - (9,28,228) 39,660 - 7,848,198 94,337 (8,45,950) 36,585 - 1,79,6490
Gross b Depreciation,/ Amortisatic Net block Net block
GAAP at As at A As at As
Particulars Adjustments Additions  Impairment™® Deductions 31 March 1 April 2024 Impairment* & s 31 March 20 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Computer software 420,938 1,36,5000) 284438 - 5. 018,563 34,025 (68,2500 254,438 - L2375
Bl Acquesation 1,85,25,600 (1.H45,25,600) - 3340 UERTIXEES - - 1,25,33,373
Wehsite Development 927,056 A58 ] 9,27,036 9.27.056 ] -
Total 1,98,73,5M = - {1,95,89,156) 2,84,438 - 72,37,846 | 3341911 (1,02,95,319) 2,584,438 - -

*Refer note 34 for impairment of assets
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|Currency: Indian Hn]wrsflis_'i 1|

4 Right-of-use asset

Particulars

Gross carrying value
Opemng balance
\dditions

[Disposals®

Closing carrving value

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Amortisanion during the vear
Dispnsals

Closing balanee

Closing carrying value

As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 March, 2024
0 .30
(.00 (L
(L0 91939
(Lo 1100
(.00 3530.67
0,060 0.00
(.00 330.67
0.0 (.00
0.00 0.00

“I'he company canceled its lease during year ending 31 March 2024 and currently does nor have an acuve lease for the fiscal year

2()24-2025.

5 Deferred tax Assets (Net)

Phirtiitars As at 3lst As at 3lst
& March, 2025 March, 2024
Deferred tax asset arising on account of (A)
Opeming L¥TA 000 T7.410.13
Timing difference beeween book depreciation and depreciation as per Tncome Tax Act 1961 .00 -7,416.13
LKLY [ANEN]
Deferred tax liability arising on account of (B)
Total 0.00 0.00
6 Other non-current tax assets
- As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particul
i March, 2025 March, 2024
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) (.00 H15
Total (.00 44,15
7 Trade receivables
: As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particul
FrRAn March, 2025 March, 2024
Considered good (.00 16.20
Considered doubtful (1,00 .00
(.00 16.20
Less: Provision for doubtful debis (100 0.00
Total 0.00 16.20
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Trade Recewables aging schedule

Particuliars

As at 3lst
March, 2025

As at 3lst
March, 2024

Outstandmyg for following periods from the date of the transaction

(1) Undisputed Trade recevables — considered good

Less than 6 months (100 16.20
6 months -1 vear LN [
1-2 years o 0,00
2-3 years L0 ()
More than 3 years .00 (.00
Total 0.00 16.20
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubiful
Less than 6 months (00 (L0
6 months -1 year (.00 (0
1-2 years (1O XL
2-3 years (00 (.00
More than 3 vears 0.0 000
Total 0.00 0.00
(1) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
Less than 6 months LAY 0.00
6 memths -1 year {101 (.00
1-2 vears 10,000 (LU0
2-3 years .00 [IRUE
More than 3 years (00 11060
Total 0.00 0.00
(iv) Disputed Trade Recewables considered doulbtful
|ess than 6 months (00 .00
6 months -1 year (00 0.00
1-2 years (LU .00
2-3 years .06 0.0
More than 3 vears (.00 .00
Total .00 0.00
Total 0.00 16.20
8 Cash and cash equivalents
Pavticikass As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 March, 2024
Balances with banks in:
Balanee with scheduled banks
- CUrrenl accounts .76 328.21
Cash in hand 0.00 143.67
6,706 471.58
Total 6.76 471.88
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9 Other current financial assets

2 As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Interest acerued ot not due (.00 1.0
Oithers XL 2502
Total (L0 25.02
10 Other current assets
. As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Prepad expenses (.00 .00
Balanee with revenue authorines 0.00 19,057.72
Ohther advances (.00 5.25
Current portion of deferred notional rent expense (.00 (0,00
Total 10.01) 19,062.97
11 Equity share capital
Authorised
i Amount in
i Number of equity
Particulars ! Rupees

shares

(at par value)

Equity shares of INR 10 each
Asat 01 Apnl 2024
Increase/ (decrease) during the year

6,500,000

GS,000.001

As at 31st March 2025 6,500.00 65,000,00
ol Amount in
Particulars PambiEc Gf gty Rupees
shares

(at par value)

Equity shares of INR 10 each
As at 01 April 2023
Increase / (decrease) dunng the vear

6,500,000

65,000,00

As at 31st March 2024 6,500.00 65,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
. Amount in
Particulars Number of equity Rupecs
shares
(at par valuce)
Equity shares of INR 10 cach
Asat 01 April 2024 6,019.64 60,196.39
Increase / (decrease) during the year .00 (L)
As at 31st March 2025 6,019.64 60,196.39
- Amount in
Particulars Fifwinline f s 0ity Rupees
shares pe
{at par value)
Equity shares of INR 10 each
Asar 01 April 2023 5,994.51 59,945.14
Increase/(decrease) during the year 25.13 251.25
As at 31st March, 2024 6,019.64 60,196.39
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a) Reconeiliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars

Number of equity

Amount in
Rupees

shupes (at par value)
Equity shares of INR 10 cach
Asat 01 Apnl 2024 6,019.64 060, 196.3%
Ve Shares issued on exercise of employee stock oprions during the year .00 000
Add: Shares issued on private placement during the vear (.00 (.00
As at 31st March 2025 6,019.64 60,196.39
Parti ) Number of equity At

articulars Rupees
shares
(at par value)

Equity shares of INR 10 each
Asar 01 April 2023 5,994.51 59.945.14
Increase/(decrease) during the vear
Add: Shares sssued on private placement during the year 2513 251.25
As at 31st March, 2024 6,019.64 60,196.39

b). Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is entitled 0 one

vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends m Indian Rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is

subject to the nppﬂ'r\'-.ll of the sharcholders in the ensumng Annual General Meet ing, except interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaming assers of the Company,

after distribution of all |3rl![-t'rul1li:l| AmMounts, if any. The distribution will be in proporton to the number of t.'t.lllir_\' shares held b)‘ the

shareholders.

¢). Sharcholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

Particulars As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 March, 2024
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up
Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
MNumber 31,75,122 31,75,122
"o Holding 52.75% 52.75%
Srinivas Sapalya
Number 757,578 -
" Holding 1259 0.00%,
J.B.Advani & Company Pvt. Lid.
Number 6,000,000 600,400
" L lolding 297" 997"
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at 31st March 2025

d}. Sharcholding of Promoters

MName of Promoter

As at 3lst
March, 2025

As at 3lst
March, 2024

Equity shares of Rupees 10 each, fully paid up
Ador Multiproducts Lud.

J.B.Advani & Company Pyt. Lid.

Number of shares held
“w of toral shares

"o Change durmyg the year

Number of shares held

31,775,122

52.75%

G0N

i

e IELEHN

"wof toml shares 9.97% 0.97%
“u Change durning the year 5
Deep Lalvani
Mumber of shires held L5110 L1110
"o of total shares 251" 2.51%
"w Change during the year -
Tanya Advani
Number of shares held 15,152 15,152
“a of total shares 0.25" .25%4
" Change duning the year -
Taotal
Number of shares held 39,41, 384 39,441,384
*u of toral shares 65:48" 65.48"
"o Change during the year - =
Other Equity
Pusticaliis As at 3lst As at 3lst
% March, 2025 March, 2024

Retained Earnings
Balance ar the beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

-34,829.28

-48.821,04

Profit/(loss) for the year -25,242.29 11,743.08
Sceurities premium .00 2.248.68
-60071.57 -34,829.28
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Balance at the begmning of the year -197.13 -197.13
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plan 0.00 0.00
-197.13 -197.13
Total -60,268.70 -35,026.41
Long-term borrowings
Particulars As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 March, 2024
- From Related party
J.B Advam & Company Pyt Lud.* 0.0 (100
Total 0.00 0.00

* During the year, company received INR 1,425 thousands (Y. INR 37,265 thousands) as 1CD and have written back the same.

Refer Note 33.1
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14 Other trade payables

o

Piriciliie As at 3lst As at 3lst
) March, 2025 March, 2024
Pres o nricro, small and medinm enterprises 4541 212.18
ues to other than micro, small and medivm enterprses 8.26 6,767.57
Total 54.07 6,979.75
Trade payvable aging schedule:
. As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
(1) MSME
Less than Iyear 453.81 60,18
.00 152.00
[ 000 (.00
More than 3 years 0.00 L0010
Total 45.81 212.18
(i) Others
Less than Tyear 8.26 .00
1-2 years .00 5,359.17
2-3 vears (L) 140840
More than 3 years (.00 (.00
Total 8.26 6,767.57
There are no disputed dues MSMI and others
Other current financial liabilities
i As at 3lst As at 3lst
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Statutory dues payable .00 124.82
Advance from customers 0.00 7269
implovee related dues 0,00 .00
Outstanding expenses 25.00 8842
Total 25.00 285.93
16 Revenue from operations
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Sale of products 0,00 15,762.04
Orther operating revenue (.00 (.00
Total 0.00 15,762.04
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17 Other income
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Interest mcome:

- on bank deposits 00 523
- on ineome tax refunds .38 5.50
= O securty dl'pn wsits measured at amorosed cost (IRR N (AR
Giamn on account of cancellation of lease (0060 33.35
Sundry balances winitten back +843.51 14,100.549
Sundry receipts 0.0 329,70
Business Support Services (100 48.85
Total 4,845.89 14,523.52
18 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Purchases of Swock-in-Trade 0,00 -217.29
Total 0.00 -217.29

19 Changes in inventories
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Inventorics at the end of the year

lfinished poods [TAL] (.00
0,00 0.00

Inventories at the begnning of the year
Finished goods (100 28,060.95
(1.0 28.061.95
Total 0.00 28,060.95

20 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Salaries, wages and bonus .00 5,835.90
Contribution to provident and other funds (.00 275.35
Contribution to gratuity 0.0 0.00
Leave encashment 0.00 .00
Staff welfare expense (LI #5.75
Total 0.00 6,197.00

21 Finance Costs

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Interest on borrowings from banks 0.00 423.36
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits (.00 1,134.94
Other finance costs H43 36.68

Total 8.43 1,594.98
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22

23

24

25

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
lJL'p:'uCl,]Imn on property, plane and eyupment Mefer now 3) 0434 361.00
Amortization of ntangble assets (Refer note 3) 334191 209,54
Depreciation on on Right-ofuse assers (Refer note 4) 0,00 (0,00
Total 3,436.25 2,370.54
Other expnses
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Admumistrative Expenscs 1.73 KERVL
Markenting expenses (.00 642,30
Brand Registeration (.00 371.38
Flectricity espense 2.37 18.84
Fxchange Loss 130.11 548.91
Packing material (10 93.87
Advertisement expenses (LU0 378.42
Travelling and convevance (.00 79.97
Legal and professional 105.20 1.677.28
Leave & Ticence Fees 0.00 40060
Storage and handling charges .00 1,275.00)
Loss on sale of property plant & cquipement (.00 22307
Bad debis 16.20 345.38
Registration fees .00 6.04
\uditors' remuneration (Refer Note No, 25) 25.400 50.88
Repairs & Mamenance expense 39.22 953,49
Printing and stationery 1.17 4.30
Commussion and gateway charges 0.00 37.71
Telephone postage & communication 4.30 1.623.09
Website expenses 3474 143.72
Miscellaneous expenses 46.43 240823
Total 406.47 11,407.00
Earnings per share
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

i) Net profir after tas as per statement of profit and loss anributable o equity shareholders
i) Weighred average number of equity shares used as denomimator for calculating basic
LISPS

i) Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of employee stock

-25,242.29

6.019.64

11,743.08

6,019.64

options 0.00 (L0
W) Towal weighred average number of equiry shares used as denominator for caleulating

diluted [EPS 6,019.64 6,019.64
v) Net profit after tax for diluted EPS -25,242.29 11,743.08
vi) Basic carnings per share (Rupees.) (#.19) 318
vit) Anti-dilutive earnings per share (Rupees) 419 308
viti) Face value per equity share (Rupees) 10 10
) Anti-dilutive carmings per share (Rupees) = =
Auditors' remuneration

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Audit fees 25.00 42 50)
Auditor out of pocket expenses 0.0 4,38
Total 25.00 50.88

(This space has been imntentionally left blank)
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26 Related Party Disclosures :

I Names of related parties and description of relationship

A Enterprise where control exists
i)  Holding Company

Ador Muloproduet Limied

|. B, Advam & Company Pvr Lid

B Others related party withwhom transactions have been taken place during the vear
i) 3 Futare Technologies Pyt Lid

Ador Welding 1ed

n)  Ador Fonrech Lid

w) o Adiya Malkam

v} Anatomicals Ador India Pvt Lud

i

vi)  Aruna Advam
vil) 23 Yaeds India Pet Lad

wit) Every Last Details

ii) Key management personnel (KMP)
Deep Lalvam
Ninotchka Nagpal (Resigned wee.f 30th May 2023 )
Tanya Advam (Resigned woe 30th May 2023)
Jatn Pokarne (Appointed w.e.f 21st June 2023)
Sushant Shinde (Appointed w.e.f 13th July 2023)

iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel where transactions have taken place
NA

B) Transactions with related parties for the year are as follows:

Key Relatives of
Transaction during the year Holding management Key Other n.:I;m:d
Company personnel Management parties
(KMP) Personnel
Purchases of Goods (Net)
Every Last Details - . . -
- E 36.25
Sale of personal Care Product (Ner)
. B. Advam & Company Pve. Lud. i - " = _
-LA419.38 = = =
Ador Welding Lid = "
E - -12.28
Deep Lalvam = = = =
= 11077 - . -
Ninotchka Nagpal E = :
- ~40.01 - -
Tanya Advam F s E =
- 3848 - -
Aditya Malkam E = = 5
. ! : .19
Aruna Advam i = = -
. - _ 314
Sale of Capital Goods
30 Future Technologies Pyt, Lid. = » = 5
- = - -52.06
. B. Advam & Company Pvr. Lid. = - -
-1207
Ador Multiproducts Lid. 3008 . . .
2117 = < "
Jann Pokarne : = - -
e -4.95
Sushant Shinde - - . -
293 5 -

Conrd.. ..
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B) Transactions with related parties for the year are as follows: (Contd....)

Holding Key Relatives of | Other related
i . . Company management Key parties
ransacitron l'l'l]l'll'lg thc !‘Cill’ pcrﬁoﬂ“c! h’ral]ilg(‘]“cll(
(KMP) Personnel
Rent Paid
Ador Fonrech L. - - - -
= 20,00
Receipt of ICD
I. B. Advani & Company Pyt. Lid. 1.425.00
-38,900.00 -
Waiver of Inter-company deposit
I. B. Advani & Company Pvt. Lid. 1,425.00 = =
-37,265.38
Interest on Inter-company deposits
. B. Advan & Company Pvt. Lid. - = -
-1,134.94 . -
Waiver of Interest on Inter-company deposit
|. B. Advani & Company Pyt Lid. - -
1,021.45 - .
Security deposits received
|. B, Advani & Company Pvi. Led. - = =
-174.00 2 =

Balances at the year end : = = %

(Figures in negative represents previous years numbers)
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27 Ratios

[COI}

Col}

: . Ratio Current | Ratio Previous| % of
Particulars Numerator Denominator : S ;
period period Variance

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.09 084 -90%

Debt-Equity ratio Total Debrt Sharcholder’s Equity - 1.60 | -100%

Debrt service coverage ratio  |Earnings available for debt Debt Service 14.50 (4.15)[ -450%
service

Return on equity ratio Net Profits afrer taxes — Average Shareholder’s (2.01) (Lol)]  25%
Preference Dividend (if any)  |Equity

Inventory tarnover ratio Cost of goods sold OR sales  [Average Inventory NA 1.77 NA

Trade receivables rurnover Net Credit Sales Average Accounts NA 1745 NA

rato Recervable

Trade payables turnover ratio |Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables INA 1.20 NA

Net capital tarnover ratio Net Sales Average Working Capiral NA 1.48 NA

Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales NA -109%  NA

Return on capital employed  |Earning before interest and Net Sales NA -107%(  NA
taxes

Return on investment IMV(TT) — MV(T0) — Sum INV(TO) + Sum [W(t) * NA NA NA

Since there is no sales during the year majour ratios are not applicable for current year

For Retun on investments
Tr = End of time period

To = Beginning of ime period

t = Specific date falling between T and Ty

MV(T1) = Market Value at T

MV(Th) = Market Value at T

C(1) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date

W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (Le. either net inflow or net outflow) on day ‘), calenlated as [T'1 — ] / T1
;’3 & »
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28 Fair value measurements
1 Financial instruments by category:

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVTPL

Amortised cost

Financial Asscts - Non Current
Oither non-current financial assets

Financial Assets - Current

0.0

(.00

(N

0.00

Trade recenvables 0,00 16.20
Cash and cash equivalents 6.76 71.88
Orther current financial asser 25.02
Financial Liabilities - Non Current
Long-term borrowings .00 0.00
Financial Liabilities -
Trade pavables 5407 6,979.75
Other current financial habilities 25.00 28593

1. Fair value hierarchy

I'he fair values of the financial assets and habilines are ncluded ar the amount that would be recerved to sell an asser or patd o transt

tran

saction berween marker participants at the measurement date.

This seetion explans the judgements and estmates made in determining the far values of the financial nstruments that are

liability in an orderly

(a) recogmsed and measured ar fair value and

(b) measured ar amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial starements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has elassified its financial nstruments into the three levels
presenbed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the rable.

Level I: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listed equity nstruments that have gquored market price.

Level 2: The tair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is detesmined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. [f all significant inpurs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: It one or more of the significant mputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument 15 included in level 3. This s the case for unlisted ity
securities, contingent constderation and indemnification asset included m level 3.

I1. Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The fair values of secunty deposits are based on discounted eash flows using a discount rate being incremental borrowing rate (refer note 11 below)

III. Financial asscts and liabilities measured at fair value Fair value hierarchy - recurring fair value measurement:

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

inancial Assets - Non-current

Deposits 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Note:
During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transters amongst the levels of hicrarchy.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, other bank balances, non-current loans, current loans, other current financial asser, trade
pavables and other current financial liabilities are considered ro be approximately equal to the fair value.

I'he far values computed above for assets and labilities measured at amortised cost are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are
classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hicrarchy due to the use of observable inputs.
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|Curreney: Indian Rupees(Rs'000))

2 |Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financnl habiliies comprse depostes, trade and other pavables. The mam purpose of these financial

liabilities 15 to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s pancipal financial assets include current loans, teade and other

recetvables, and cash and cash equivalents that derve directly from its operations.

The Company 1s exposed o eredir sk, marker visk and liqudity risk. The Company’s sentor management oversees the

management of these nisks,

A | Credit risk

‘The company 1s exposed to credir nsk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing activities
(deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

Credit risk management

To manage credit nsk, the Company follows a policy of providing 30-180 days credit to the customers basis the nature of]

customers, The credit limit policy is established considering the current economic trends of the industey in which the company is
operating.

However, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues

andd provision is created accord l‘lgl\'.

Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majonty of other security deposits are placed majorly with government

agencies/ public secror underrakings.

Age of receivables that are past due:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Upto 30 days 0.00 0.00
30-60 days 0.00 16.20
60-90 days 0.00 0.00
More than 90 days 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 16.20

B |Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s defined as the nsk thar the Company will nor be able to settle or meet its obliganions on time or at a reasonable

price. For the Company, hiquidity risk artses from obligations on account of financial abilities — trade payables and other financial

liabilitics,

Liquidity risk management

The Company’s management is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes
and policies related to such risks are overscen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

C |Market risk

Price Risk

The company is not exposed to any price risk

3 |Capital Management

a |Risk management

The company’s objectives when managing eapital are to

* safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, and

* maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Apart from trade pavables and other current habilities, there is no debr on the company. Therefore, the company manages irs
capital and retuen to sharcholders by adequately investing in mutual funds and equiry shares and adjustng the amount of dividend

paid to the sharcholders.
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[Curreney: Indian Rupees(Rs'000)]

C Market risk
(i) Price Risk
The company 15 exposed o price nsk from its mvestment in mutoal fund, investment in equity shares and investment in preference shares chssitied in
the balance sheet ar fue value thaough profitand loss,
To manmige s price sk arising from the invesiment, the Company has invested in the mutual fund and equity shares after considering the risk and
rerurn profile of the mutal funds and equity shares ve. the debr profile indicates thar the debt has been given o eredivworthy partics and equity
mvestment is made after considenng the performance of the swoek.. However, the entity being risk averse hag opred to invest its subseantial funds in debi
orented mutual funds,
Sensitivity
As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 | March, 2024
Impaet on profit after tax for 3% increase in NAV /price - E
Impact on profit after tax for 5% deercase in NAV/Price - i
3 Capital Management
a Risk management

The company’s objectives when managing eapital arc 1o
* safeguard ther ability to continue as a going concern, so thar they can continue 10 provide returns for sharcholders and benefirs for other stakeholders,
and

* maintain an optimal eapital structure to reduce the cost of eapital.

Apart from trade payables and other current habilitics, there is no debt on the company. Therefore, the company manages its eapital and retumn
g i mutual funds and equity shares and adjusting the amount of dividend paid to the sharcholders,

reholders by adequatcly inve
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29 Contingent liabilities and Commitments

30

31

(a) Contingent liabilities

There is no contingent labilitics of the company for the reporting periods,

(b) Commitments

There are no operating lease commirments.

Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the business of trading of personal care products. The performance of the

Company is assessed and reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ((CODM) as a single

operating scgment and accordingly "Personal care products” is the only operating scgment.

The company 1s domiciled in India. The amount of it's revenue from external customer broken down by

location of the customers is shown in table below:

Revenue from external customer

(Amount in Rs.'000)

As at 3lst As at 3lst
March, 2025 March, 2024

India 0.00 15,762.04
Outside India 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00 15,762.04
All Non-current assets of the Company are locared in India.
Details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:
Particulars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
(@) the principal amount and the interest due thereon

(to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any 45.81 212.18

(b)

(©)

(e)

supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms
section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting

the amount of interest due and payable for the
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid bur beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Aet, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and
payvable even in the succeeding year, untl such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise, for the purpose of]
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
secion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006;
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32 Ovther statutory information

1) There are no transactions durning the vear with struck off companies as at 31 Mareh 2025,

it) The company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or Virtual currency during the year,

1) During the year the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premivm or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall (1) diccedy or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of company (ultimate beneficaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, sccurity or
the like to or behalf of the uldmare beneficiaries. The company has not given any loans exeept loans to employees and made
mventories in the marketable equity shares. The company has nor given guarantee or provided security.

iv) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics) including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall (i) directly or indirectly lender invest in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the to or
behalf of the (ulimate beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

v) No proceedings are initiated or pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibinon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)

33 Exceptional item
Particulars Amount Amount
| Waiver of 1CID recetved from |. B. Advani & Company Pvr. Lid. 1,425.00 37,265.38
2 Waiver of Interest on 1CD received from . B. Advani & Company 0.00 1,021.45
Pyt. Ld.
3 Provision for input tax credir loss 18,285.92 0.00
Rl Impairment of assets (Refer Note 34) 9,376.12 0.00

Total 29,087.03 38,286.83

34 Impairment of assets
During the fiscal year, the company identified an impairment of certain assets, which was recognized in accordance with Ind AS 36
— Impairment of Assets (‘Ind AS 367), basis the external and internal indications, the Company is of the opinion that the
recoverable value of its Assets is Nil. Thus there shall be an impairment charge of gross block of INR 928 thousands, accumulated
depreciation of INR 846 thousands and net block of INR 82 thousands for tangible assets and provision for impairment of gross
block of INR 19,589 thousands, accumulated amortisation of INR 10,295 thousands and net block of INR. 9,294 thousands for
intangible asscts.

3

o

The Ultimate Holding Company has been working last two years on divesting some of non-core business, namely M/s. Ador
Multiproducts Lrd. (“AMPL”),(Assoctate Company), along with its subsidiary (1908 E-ventures Private Limited) and Associates
Companies (to the extent of indircet holding).  Accordingly, Company had received various business proposals, after revival of
various options and business proposals Company had shortlisted one interested party for diluting its stake. Accordingly, Party had
completed financial, legal and technical due diligence of Targeted Company,

The Targeted Company has made application for consents, approvals and / or permissions with relevant authoritics as may be
required and is awaiting their approval.

Thus, the management is confident that the going concern of the business activity has not impacted and is intact.

36 The Company has migrated to Tally Prime from Tally ERI' 9 and is in the process of establishing necessary controls and
documentations regarding audit trail. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said software.




37 Previous year's  Hgures  have  been regrouped/reclassificd  wherever  necessary  to correspond with the current yvear's
classificatnon /disclosure.
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